BYLAWS OF THE INSTITUTE OF RETIRED PERSONS OF SALISBURY UNIVERSITY

(Revisions of October, 2004 with amendment passed March 9, 2010)

ARTICLE I (Name)

The name of this organization shall be the Institute of Retired Persons

ARTICLE II (Objectives)

The objectives of the IRP shall be:

- 1. To enable the members to learn for the joy of learning by sharing the experience and the knowledge of other members and of visiting speakers
- 2. To provide its members opportunities of physical exercise through a swimming program and other appropriate activities, including Book Club, Bridge Club, Walking Club, Leisure Riders Bicycling Group, Camera Club, and Tour Group
- 3. To encourage and support the University in programs and projects that are particularly appropriate to the needs and interests of Salisbury University students and of senior citizens

ARTICLE III (Members)

- **Section 1**. Any person who is at least fifty (50 years of age shall be eligible for membership.
- **Section 2**. Dues shall be payable in September, the beginning of the Fall semester. Members shall be considered in arrears and shall be dropped from membership if payment has not been received within thirty (30) days of the first meeting in September.

ARTICLE IV (Officers)

- **Section 1**. The Officers of the IRP shall be President, a Vice-President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. These officers shall perform the duties prescribed by these By-Laws and by the parliamentary authority adopted by the IRP (See ARTICLE IX). The immediate past president shall be ex-officio a member of the Board.
- **Section 2**. The Officers of the Board of Directors shall be elected to serve for one (1) year. Their terms of office shall begin on July 1.
- **Section 3**. No member shall hold more than one office at a time.
- Section 4. Duties of Officers
 - **A.** President: The President will preside over all meetings of the IRP and its Board of Directors. The President will appoint committee chairpersons, standing or special as set forth in the By-Laws and serve as liaison with Salisbury University.
 - **B.** Vice-President: The Vice-President will fulfill the duties of the President if the President is unable to do so. The Vice-President will also serve as Program Coordinator.
 - C. Secretary: The Secretary will keep a written record of the meetings of the IRP Board of Directors, and be responsible for preparing all IRP mailings.
 - **D.** Treasurer: The Treasurer will receive all monies for the IRP and pay all obligations. The Treasurer will maintain accurate financial records for the IRP and present a written report at the beginning of each semester and at the Annual Meeting.

ARTICLE V (Board of Directors)

- **Section 1**. The Board of Directors shall consist of the four officers listed in ARTICLE IV, Section 1, of the immediate Past-President, and of nine (9) additional members elected to the Board by the members of the IRP. The term of office of these Board members shall be three (3) years.
- **Section 2**. The Board of Directors shall have general supervision of the affairs of the IRP, fix the hours, place of meetings, determine the amount of dues, make recommendations to the members of the IRP and perform other duties as specified by these By-Laws.
- **Section 3**. Unless otherwise ordered, regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the first Tuesday of each month. Special meetings of the Board can be called by the President or by a written request of three (3) members of the Board.

ARTICLE VI (Committees)

- **Section 1.** A Finance Committee composed of the current Treasurer and the Treasurer elect and two other members appointed by the President immediately following the Annual Meeting in April shall prepare a tentative budget for the next fiscal year and submit it to the Board of Directors for approval. Once approved, the Finance Committee can from time to time submit supplements for the current fiscal year.
- **Section 2.** An Auditing committee of three (3) members shall be appointed by the President. It shall audit the Treasurer's records at the close of the fiscal year. The report of the Auditing Committee will be submitted to the Board at its August meeting.
- Section 3. A Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the president with approval of the Board of Directors in February of each year. It shall consist of three (3) members and its duty shall be to nominate candidates for the offices to be filled and voted upon at the Annual Meeting in April. The Nominating Committee shall report at the March meeting of the Board of Directors for approval of its list of nominees to be presented. A written list of these nominees must be sent to the entire membership at least two (2) weeks before the April meeting. At the Annual Meeting in April, nominations from the floor will be permitted as long as the persons nominated have agreed to serve if elected.
- **Section 4.** A Membership Committee of three members shall be appointed by the President to maintain an up-to-date membership roster, and to carry out other duties as the President may deem necessary.
- **Section 5.** Other committees, standing or special, may be appointed by the President as and when it is deemed necessary to carry on the work of the IRP.
- **Section 6.** The President shall be an *ex officio* member of all committees with the exception of the Nomination Committee.

ARTICLE VII (Meetings)

- **Section 1**. Weekly meetings will normally be held on Tuesdays, depending on the Program Committee's arrangement and the space provided by Salisbury University, and will continue throughout the academic year.
- **Section 2**. The Annual Meeting will be the second meeting in April, unless otherwise ordered by the action of the IRP or its Board of Directors. This will be primarily a business meeting for the purpose of electing officers and directors, receiving committee reports and for other items of business that may arise.
- **Section 3**. A Special Meeting may be called by the President, by the Board of Directors or by written request signed by ten (10) or more members of the IRP. The purpose of the meeting must be stated. Except in the case of an emergency, at least five (5) days written notice must be given in advance.

Section 4. A quorum at any properly called meeting shall consist of those who attend. The passage of any motion before the IRP requires a simple majority vote of those members present and voting.

ARTICLE VIII (Miscellaneous)

- **Section 1.** Should necessity create a vacancy among the elected officers and/or the Board of Directors, the President, with the consent of the Board of Directors, shall appoint a member to fill such vacancy until the net regular election takes place. In case of a vacancy in the office of President, the Vice-President shall complete the term.
- **Section 2.** The Office of the Registrar at Salisbury University shall be the University's liaison with the IRP. The IRP shall have the status of a Student Organization of the University.
- **Section 3.** The operational and fiscal year of the IRP shall be from July 1 to June 30. This shall also constitute the terms of the officers and standing committees.
- **Section 4.** Incoming Officers and Board Members and Committee Members should meet with their outgoing counterparts to promote an orderly transition.

ARTICLE IX (Parliamentary Authority)

The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order, newly revised, shall govern the IRP in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these By-Laws or a special rules-of-order the IRP may adopt.

ARTICLE X (Amendments)

These By-Laws may be amended at any meeting by a two-thirds vote of those present and voting provided the amendment has been submitted in writing to all members at least thirty (30) days prior to that meeting.